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Appearances: 

Louie L. Rochmee, Attorney of Record in 
Docket 146, Robert S. Johnson, Attorney 
of Record In Docket 15-M, Jack Joseph, 
Attorney for Fee Applicants in Dockets 
146 and 15-M. 

Robert C. Bell, Jr. ,  Attorney of Record 
in Docket 29-K, and Attorney for Fee 
Applicants in Docket 29-K. 

D. Lee Stewart, with whom was bsistant 
Attorney General Wallace 8. Johnson, 
Attorneys for Defendant. 

OPINION OF THE COMMISSION 

Pierce, Commissioner, delivered the opinion of the Commiseion. 

Thir matter is now before the Cor~mieslon on the application of the 

attorneys of record in dockets 146, 15-M and 29-K, to have the Commission 

avard an attorneysi fee md to  apportion that fee among the attorneys for 

the three docketa. 



37 Ind. C l .  Comn. 251 

On April 19, 1974, the Couanissi~n entered a judpent  i n  the  

amount of $2,296,870.70 for  the p la in t i f f r  in the 8bwe three docketa, 

joint ly  on behalf of the Potawatmi Tribe or  Nation. 34 Ind. C1. COQ. 

1. This judgment was not appealed, and fund. t o  aa t i r fy  it were 

appropriated by Public Law 93-554, apprwed December 27, 1974, 88 Stat .  

1771. 

In a decision dated March 28, 1972 (Docketa 71 e t  al.),  27 Ind. C l .  

Comm. 187, ieeued pursuant t o  an order of remand of the Court of Claim0 

i n m e  Indian Community v. United Stater,  180 C t .  C1. 477 

(1967), the Comnission concluded that the party'with whom the United 

States dealt  in the  t rea t iea  under consideration in  the remanded docketr, 

including the Treaty of August 29, 1821, 7 Stat .  203, involved in the 

three consolidated docketaherein, was the Potawatomi Tribe o r  Nation as 

i t  existed between 1795 and 1833, and that  the Potawetani Tribe during 

that  period was a single land-owning en t i ty  having overall  ownership 

of the Potowatmi landa ceded under such t rea t ies .  Accordingly, although 

each of the p l a in t i f f s  herein i e  preeently an ident i f iable  t r i be  o r  

group of Potawatomi Indiana en t i t l ed  t o  bring s u i t  and re ta in  reparate 

counsel under the Indian Claims Comniseion Act ,  and each ha8 i n  fac t  

done so, none is the f u l l  aucceaaor to the original 1795-1833 Potmatomi 

Tribe, and the award is a single joint award t o  the three p la in t i f f r .  

In view of these circumetmces, there can be only one attorney fee t o  

be paid from the Joint award. The attorneys of record in docket. 146 

and 15-M have came to  an agreement as t o  the d iv ia im of the i r  #hare of 

the t o t a l  fee which may be awarded, but have been unable t o  agree with 



the  at torney of record f o r  Docket 29-K a s  t o  the  d ivis ion of t h a t  fee 

between them and the  l a t t e r  attorney. 

On June 20,  1974, LQu~s L. Rochmes and Robert Stone Johnson, 

at torneys of record fo r  p l a i n t i f f s  in Docket 146 and Docket 15-M, 

f i l e d  a jo in t  p e t i t i o n  f o r  the award of attorneys fees asse r t ing  t h a t  

although three  s e t s  of couneel have appeared f o r  the three p l a i n t i f f a  

i n  these proceedings, counsel for p l a i n t i f f s  i n  dockets 146 and 15-M 

performed subs tan t i a l ly  a l l  of the  rervices resul t ing  i n  the ilucceseful 

determination and t ha t  as a consequence they should receive the  e n t i r e  

fee awarded i n  the requested amount of 10% of the f i n a l  judgment. 

On Ju ly  5, 1974, Robert C. Bell. Jr., at torney of record f o r  

p l a i n t i f f s  in  Docket 29-K, f i l e d  a similar pe t i t ion  on behalf of himeelf 

and the e e t a t e  of  Walter H. Maloney, St. ,  contending t h a t  50% of the  

at torney fee should be apportioned t o  him and the  Maloney eeta te .  

On July 31, 1974, the Coaunission consolidated f o r  t r i a l  the  fee 

apportionment pet i t ion8 i n  these three dockets with three other 

Potawatcnni dockets, i .e , ,  dockets 217, 1 5 4  and 29-5, i n  which l a t t e r  

three  dockets a s imi la r  f ee  dispute existed between the  same at torneys.  

A t r i a l  was held on September 23, 1974, and o r a l  argument war heard 

on Apri l  4, 1975. The fee problem in  the  l a t t e r  three  docketa hsll been 

dealt with in a separa te  decision, 36 Ind. C1.  cam^ 498 (1975) . 
A de ta i l ed  account of the legal representation of a11 three  dockets 

is s e t  f o r t h  i n  our findings of fact numbered 2, 3, 4 and 5 .  Finding 

6 r e c i t e s  the  s t a t u t o r y  fee  p rov i s im in the  Indian C l b  C-imbn 

Act, 60 Sta t .  l a g ,  Findings 7 and 8 contaia information concerning 
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the notice to  the  par t ie r  of the fee  applications and the reaponre of 

the par t ies  t o  such applicationr. 

Zhe f i na l  w a r d  i n  the  three dockets represanta addit ional caapem8a- 

tion for  land8 ident i f ied as  Royce Area 117 lying in the southern par t  

of Michigan and the northern part  of Indiana, ceded t o  the United State. 

under the Treaty of A u g w t  29, 1821, supra, fo r  a consideration which 

the Conmission held t o  be unconscionable within the  meaning of the 

Indian Clainu Conmission Act, rupra. Under Section 15 of the  Act, the Com- 

mission is required t o  fix the fees of claims attorneys in  such aumunts 

ar  the Commission, i n  accordance with standards obtaining fo r  proaecuting 

similar contingent claims i n  courts of law, finds t o  be adequate com- 

pensation for services rendered and resu l t s  obtained, unless the amount 

of such fees is s t ipulated in  the approved contract between the attorneye 

and the claimants. 

The attorney contracts i n  Docket 146 provided for  a fee t o  the 

attorneys equivalent t o  10% of the f i na l  award, In Docket 15-M and 

Docket 2 9 4 ,  the contracts provided that  the fee for attorney rervfcer 

rhould be determined by the Commission in  an amount not i n  excerr of 

10% of the f i na l  award. On the basis of the en t i r e  proceedings i n  a11 

of these dockets and in  the l igh t  of the responsibi l i t ies  undertaken 

by counsel, the d i f f i c u l t  problems of fact  and law, the appeal an the  

en t i t y  question, the extensive briefinge,  oral  arguments, and p r e t r i a l  

proceedings, and based on the findings of fac t  made herein, the  Corn- 

misrion i a  of the opinion tha t  the attorney fee i n  these three dockets 

rhould be 10% of the final award, or $229,687.07. 



In  Sisseton and Wahpeton Bands o r  Tribes v. United Sta tes ,  191 Ct. 

C1. 459, 423, F. 2d 1386 (1970). the  Court of Claims determined t h a t  

the  Conmission has j u r b d i c t i o n  t o  apportion fees between at torneys 

operating under separa te  contingency fee  employment contrac ts  i f  they 

a r e  unable t o  agree on an apportionment, 

The c r i t e r i o n  f o r  apportioning the allowable at torney fee  i a  

bas ica l ly  s e t  out i n  the Indian Claims Conmission Act, 25 U.S.C. f70n. 

but has been fu r the r  explained by the Court of Claims. The Act, supra, 

s t a t e s  t h a t  at torneys a r e  t o  be compensated f o r  ". . . a l l  services  

rendered i n  prosecuting the  claim i n  question . . ." It is c l e a r  t h a t  

t o  pa r t i c ipa te  i n  any fee  award an attorney must have par t ic ipated  i n  

"promoting the  pa r t i cu la r  claim for which recovery has been allowed." 

Red Lake and Pembina Bands v. Tur t le  Mountain Band of Chippewa Indians, 

173 Ct. C1. 928, 933, 355 F, 2d 936 (1965). 

Further, when the  claim i n  question is jo in t ,  "the services  fo r  

which an at torney is t o  be compensated . . . consis t  of e f f o r t 6  t o  

c r e a t e  and preserve t h a t  fund, not of unsuccessful attempts t o  capture i t  

f o r  one enti ty."  Red Lake, supra, 937-938. 

The c r i t e r i o n  t o  be used i n  any apportionment decision war fu r the r  

defined in Codfroy v. United Sta tes ,  199 C t .  C1. 487 (1972), aff'g on 

rehearing, Docket 124-D, e t  a l e ,  24 Ind. C1. Cwm. 450 (1971), r e h e a r h a  

denied, 200 C t .  C1. 728, 473 F. 2d 892 (l973), cer t .  denied, 414 U.S. - 
825 (1973). There the court  made the following statement which is 

per t inent  herein: 



Where two law f i r m  reprerenting two dwcend- 
mt brache r  of .a M i a n  t r ibe  rucceed i n  obtain- 
ing mat& from the Indian C l a k r  Corairrion, the 
~orirnm attornay fear allowed are  t o  be apportioned 
batween the two firma . . . i n  proportion t o  the 
re la t ive  contribution of each firm tn reuderfjlg 
r ~ r v i c e r  fo r  the benefit of the caprppon c r w e  of the 
two dercendant groupr. Supra, a t  488. 

In rupport of thef r  contention that  the en t i r e  attorneye' fee rhould 

be mkrded to  caunrel for  Qckatr 146 and 15-M, the attorneyr of record 

in thora docketr u r e r t  tha t  rubrtant ia l ly  a l l  of the l i t i ga t ion  on the 

merit8 of t i t l e ,  conrideration, value and other rubatmtive frruer which 

producod the f ina l  mrd of April 19, 1974, were conducted an bahalf o f  

the Potmmtooli Indima by counrel for p la in t i f f8  i n  docketr 15-M and 146 

and that  rub r tmt i a l ly  none o f t h e  l i t iga t ion  on the merit8 w u  conducted 

by cotmael for  the 28-K plaint i f fa .  Counrel a l ro  urged tha t  what work 

W- done by counrel for  Docket 29-K related t o  advancing the c a r e  of 

only a portion of thore Indium who participated in  the 1821 treaty,  t o  

the exclurion of the Pra i r ie  and Citizen Bm& of P o t m a t m i  Indiana. 

In rupport of t h i r  argument c o m ~ e l  re ly  on the decirion of tha 

Court of Claim i n  Red Lake and Pembina Ban&, mupra. In tha t  care 

the court held that  wbercr one of the attorneyr t o  whom the Ccraraisrion 

had awarded r fee had done none of the work on the 'klaim i n  q u a r t i d  

although he war one of the attorney8 of record, he war not en t i t l ed  t o  

a fee. In the Red h k e  c u e  the ef for t r  of the attorney in quertioa were 

not in rupport of the j o a t  o r  mutual interer ta  of a l l  o f  tho iavolvd 

group8 but rather were directed a t  further- the intereotr  of only one 

party a t  the expenre of the other c la inmtr .  Chmael for p la in t i f f8  



i n  Docket 146 and Docket 15-H appear t o  f e e l  t h a t  the e f f o r t s  of counsel 

i n  Docket 2 9 4  i n  es tabl ishing the  so-called s ing le  land owning e n t i t y  

theory, i .e . ,  t h a t  a t  the  t ime of the t r e a t y  i n  s u i t  the United. 

S ta tes  was dealing with the  Potawatomi Tribe o r  Nation and not with 

severa l  autonomous bands of  Potawatomi Indians a8 the owner of the  land 
8 

being ceded, was an attempt t o  benef i t  the p l a i n t i f f s  i n  Docket 2 9 4  a t  

the expense of the  p l a i n t i f f s  i n  the other dockets. It appears t h a t  

the  u l t imate  adoption by the  Commission of the s ing le  land owntng 

e n t i t y  theory ae dist inguished from the "Band" theory espoused by 

Docket 146 and Docket 15-M, 27 Ind. C1. Comn. 187 (1972), had the  e f f e c t  

of allowing a l l  pet i t ioning Potawatmi Indians t o  pa r t i c ipa te  i n  the  

awsrd, whereas the  "Band" theory, i f  it had prevailed,would have required 

the dismissal of  the  p e t i t i o n  i n  Docket 29-K, as in f a c t ,  it did  a t  one 

point i n  t h i s  l i t i g a t i o n ,  See Finding 39. 

The determination of the p r o p e r  Indian p a r t i e s  t o  the  t r e a t y  o r  

t r e a t i e s  under consideration is a legftimate aspect of the t i t l e  phaee 

of a claim i n  coneidering whether the at torneys '  aervicee f o r  t h i s  work 

a re  canpensable. When the  Court of C l a w  remanded theee dockets, 

among others ,  f o r  precise ly  such a determination, Hannahville Indian 

Camnunity v. United Sta tes ,  180 C t .  C l .  477 (1967), we  s t a t e d  in our 

subsequent decision on remand the following: 

. . . the  nature of the  p o l i t i c a l  s t ruc tu re  of 
the  Potawatomie must be aaeweted i n  order t o  
determine who the  United Sta tes  constdered the  
owner of  the  Potawatcmri lands durjtng the  times 
under consideration, f o r  the  purpose8 of t rans-  
f e r r ing  t o  the  United Sta tes  the  e n t i r e  Indian 



in tereat  i n  these lands. The annwer t o  t ha t  
question w i l l  a l ro  determine what group o r  groups 
are  en t i t l ed  t o  share i n  an award being sought a8 
addit ional comparuation for  land. ceded t o  the  
United States  by the  Potawatani Indiaru during the 
t rea ty  period under conr iderat im [27 Lnd, C l .  
C~ara.  187, 191-1921 

There war no appeal fran our 80-called "enti ty decision", but aeveral 

of the dockets consolidated for  the purpose of determining the en t i t y  

question d id  f i l e  appealr, fn Pottawetomie Nation of Indiana v. United 

state., 205 C t .  C1. 76% 502 2d 852 (1974),  involving our docket. 29-N, 

15-P and 306, the Coclmissionrs eingle en t i t y  holding was affirmed a s  

t o  the t rea t iea  involved in those dockets, By order of March 7, 1975, 

206 C t .  C1.  867, aimilar action was taken on the appeals of several  of 
-. 

the other dockets consolidated in  the en t i t y  proceeding (dockets 128, 309, 

310, 15-N, 15-0, 15-Q, 15-R, 29-L, 29-M, 2930, and 29-P). No appeal war 

taken in  the three dockets here under consideration, 

Since it is c l ea r  tha t  determining who was the Indian owner of the 

land i n  r u i t  is as much a p a r t  of the t i t l e  phase of these proceedingr 

ar  what land i a  involved in  the par t icular  transaction, it appears tha t  

the cowre l  for p l a i n t i f f s  in a l l  three dockets are  en t i t l ed  t o  campen- 

ra t ion for  t he i r  e f for t8  i n  t h i s  regard, 

Another contention made by counsel i n  dockets 146 and 15-M is tha t  

the fee rhould be apportioned in proportion t o  the r i z e  of the  prerent 

day p l a in t i f f  groups. This theory was expressly rejected by the Court 

of Claim i n  Godfrov v. United States,  uupra. The court again a ta tad 

tha t  the fee  should be apportioned in proportion t o  the r e l a t i ve  cm- 

t r ibut ionr  of each ea t  of attorneys i n  rendering services fo r  the 
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cornDon concern of  a l l  sharing in the  award. Accordingly, we s h a l l  now 

turn  our a t t e n t i o n  t o  the services so  rendered by the  three  s e t s  of 

counsel . 
On September 30, 1953, the three  dockets were consolidated f o r  

t r i a l  with dockets 13-M, 18-4 and 40-K. The three addi t ional  dockets 

involved claims o f  Chippewas and Ottawas t o  the same land. On September 

11 and 12, 1956, the  t r i a l  was held on the issue of t i t l e  t o  Royce Area 

117. Defendant took the posit ion tha t  the p l a i n t i f f s  in  the  s i x  

consolidated dockets had ne i the r  recognized nor aboriginal  t i t l e  t o  any 

definable .portion of the  ceded area.  Unlike the t i t l e  phase i n  dockets 

217, 1 5 4  and 29-5 where defendant conceded tha t  p l a i n t i f f s  had recognized 

I /  
t i t l e  t o  much of the land i n  s u i t ,  - in  the ins tant  cases defendant 

vigorouely maintained t h i s  posi t ion throughout the t r i a l  and thereaf ter .  

Counsel for  dockets 146 and 15-M acting cooperatively, introduced 

109 exhibi ts  on t i t l e  and the  testimony of an expert witness, D r .  

Anthony Wallace, an anthropologist.  In h ie  testimony and through the  

documents introduced i n  evidence, p l a i n t i f f s  i n  these two dockets 

sought t o  e s tab l i sh  t h a t  i n  the  area  eouth of the  Kalamazoo River i n  

Michigan, the  Potmatomi Indians exclusively used and occupied the  

land f o r  many yeara p r i o r  t o  the 1821 Treaty and t h a t  the  Ottawas 

s imi la r ly  used and occupied the northern par t  of Royce Area 117. 

1/ Dockets 217, 15-K and 29-3 were the lrubject of a s imi la r  fee dispute 
getween the  same a t t o r n e y .  A decilrion apportioning the  fee  there in  w.8 
fsaued October 23, 1975, 36 Ind. C1. Carno. 498. Because the  general 
arguments of the  pa r t i e s  t o  the  fee conteet were the rame in thom docket. 
a8 i n  the  present three doclcetr, much of the @me language w i l l  appear 
in this opinion. For the  convenience of the pa r t i e s ,  and the court  i n  
the event of an appeal, the pertfnent  passage. i n  the 1975 opinion have 
been repeated r a t h e r  than refer red  to,  a h c e  the l a t t e r  course w a l d  
put Lha reader t o  the inconvenience of repeatedly turning t o  the e a r l i e r  
decision. 



Counsel for dockets 134, 18-0 and 40-R introduced 113 exhibit8 i n  

widence and the tertiPony of Dr .  h r  C. Stewart, an anthropologirt, 

who t e s t i f i ed  that  the Ottawa Indians exclusively occupied the area in 

Area 117 north of the Kal.mrzoo River, locating thereon a number of 

Ottawa villages. D r .  Stewart s ta ted that  he was In  rubrrtrntirl agree- 

ment w'th the tertimony of Dr. Wallace concerning the divirfon of the 

area between Potawatani and Ottawa Indians, and also tha t  h i s  research 

had not indicated that  the Potmatomi Indisnr had been a mingle pol i t ical  

en t i ty  for the purpose of awning and ceding thie  land. 

Counsel for defendant croeo.examined both Dr .  Wal lac~  and Dr. 

Stewart in an attempt t o  rhaw tha t  Indian occupancy t o  the ceded area 

w.r not exclusive in  any one group. He a lso was c r i t i c a l  of Dr. Stewart'r 

ure of "secondary rrource" material in locattng Ottawa vi l lager  in the 

area. 

Counsel for Docket 2 9 4  did not have an expert witners but did offer 

for admisrion in evidence 36 exhibits. The exhibita were admitted by the 

Commission, giving defendant'r counrel and the other counrel, 30 day8 

in  which to  examine them and make any objectionr they f e l t  appropriate 

rince C O U . ~ O ~ ~  had not, a8 the ruler of the Comniarion required, rubmitted 

the exhibits t o  counsel in advance of the t r i a l  day. Tbe exhibit8 

conairtad of documentr relatgve t o  the 1821 t reaty of cerrion, aeveral 

pprpr, congressional reports aoncerning private legis la t ion conferring 

on the Court of Clainrr juriediction t o  adjudicate the c l a i m  o f  

Wioconein P o t m t d  Indiana for  the i r  alleged share of unpaid annultier, 

and other material intended to  ertabliah caunoellr pooition tha t  a t  the 



time of the  signing of  the 1821 Treaty, the Potawatomi Indians conr t i tu ted  

a s i n g l e  land-owning e n t i t y  ra the r  than f i v e  separa te  autonomous band6 

of Indians. Counsel of fered no evidence, documentary o r  o t h e w i r e ,  

on the  isaue of the extent  of Potmatomi aboriginal  use and occupancy of 

the  area in  s u i t .  Counsel d id  examine D r .  Stewart but s o l e l y  fo r  

t e s t h g  h i s  conclusion t h a t  he had not found evidence of the Potawatomi 

Indians being a s i n g l e  land-owning e n t i t y  i n  1821. 

Defendant introduced 65 exhibi ts  and the testimony of D r .  Erminie 

Wheeler Voegelin, an anthropologist and his tor ian .  Also introduced 

i n  evidence was a lengthy and deta i led  report  prepared by D r .  Voegelin. 

The report  contained no mater ia l  r e l a t ing  t o  events subsequent t o  1821 

and she concluded i n  the report  and in  her testimony t h a t  although 

Potawatomi and Ottawa Indians were in  the subject  area a t  varioua times 

p r i o r  t o  and i n  1821, she could not f ind any r i g i d  boundaries between 

the  two g r a p e  of Indians and t h a t  t h e i r  occupation did  not meet the  

standards necessary t o  es tab l i sh  exclusive use and occupancy t i t l e .  

She a l s o  gave as  her opinion t h a t  the Potawatomis were divided i n t o  

several  autonowus bande f o r  land owning purposes. In the course of  

he r  d i r e c t  examination, Chief Cammissioner Witt asked her  a d e r  of  

queetione and u l t  knately D r .  Voegelin conceded t h a t  the  Ottawas 

probably had exclusive occupancy of the  northern par t  of the rubject  

area f o r  6ome time p r i o r  t o  the  t r e a t y  date,  and t h a t  the Potawatani8 

s imi la r ly  used and occupied the routhern portion. It r e e m  f a i r  t o  i n f e r  

t h a t  a8 a r e s u l t  of Dr .  Voegelin'r reapon8ea t o  Colrmiasfoner Witt'a 

questions, counrel f o r  p l a i n t i f f r  decided not  t o  cross  examine her and 
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d i d  not  do so. 

On December 5, 1956, counrel fo r  p l a i n t i f f s  in docket. 146 and 

15-kf j o i n t l y  f i l e d  proposed finding. o f  fact and a brief. S o w  of t h e  

finding0 dea l t  with the  e n t i t y  i ssue  and with p l a i a t i f f s '  claim of 

recognized t i t l e .  The bulk o f  the  findinga d e a l t  with the  evidence of 

exclusive use and occupancy of the  ceded area based on the  testimony of 

Dr. Wallace and D r .  Stewart, documents admitted i n  evidence, and a180 on 

the report  and testimony of D r .  Voegelin. In the  accompanying b r i e f ,  

counrel d id  not discuss t h e  e n t i t y  iasue, but concentrated s o l e l y  on 

the  mat te t  of aboriginal  use and occupancy t i t l e  t o  the  land8 i n  s u i t .  

On February 1, 1957, counsel f o r  p la in t i f f .  i n  Docket 2 9 4  f i l e d  

proposed findings of f a c t ,  a b r i e f ,  and object ions t o  the  proposed 

finding. of dockets 146 and 15-M on the  e n t i t y  issue.  O f  t he  22 propored 

findings of  f a c t ,  only one, No. XVIII, dea l t  with the  i raue  of  exclwive 

ure and occupancy of the  ceded area  by the  Potawatomi Indians and it 

was i n  the nature of an u l t imate  finding, unsupported by any primary 

findings, concluding tha t  the  Potwatomi Tribe o r  Nation war the  pre- 

daminant land owner i n  the  area ,  was the  moat numerous of  the  Indians 

of the  three  groups l iv ing  i n  the area, and t h a t  the  record did  not 

rupport Chippewa exclusive ownership of any of the  ceded lands. For 

a de ta i l ed  diecumion of these propoaed findings, r e e  our f inding No. 

16. The accompanying brief was devoted almost so le ly  t o  arguing the  

a ing le  e n t i t y  theory of Docket 2 9 4 .  

On Nay 20, 1957, defendant f i l e d  extenrive propored findinga of 

fact ,  object ions t o  the  propoaed finding. of a11 plaintiff. ,  and a brief* 
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Defendant asser ted  t h a t  only the  p l a i n t i f f s  i n  dockets 146 and 15-H 

were proper  p a r t i e s  i n  i n t e r e s t  i n  the l i t i g a t i o n ;  tha t  no definable 

pa r t  of the Royce Area 117 was excluaively used and occupied by those 

pa r t i e s ,  and tha t  there had been no United Sta tes  recognition of t i t l e  

in  any Indians t o  t h i s  area. The propolred findings and b r i e f  dirputed 

the  a lngle  e n t i t y  theory of Docket 2 9 4 .  

On September 20, 1957, counsel f o r  p l a i n t i f f s  i n  146 and 15-M 

f i l e d  a rep? v b r i e f  and objections t o  defendantf s proposed findings 

of fact. On the s ing le  e n t i t y  theory, counsel for  dockets 146 and 15-M 

merely s t a t e d  tha t  t h i s  i ssue  had been l i t i g a t e d  before the Commission 

i n  dockets 15-J and 71-A and the decision, adverse t o  the  s i n g l e  e n t i t y  

theory i n  those cases, was pending on appeal  before the  Court of Claims. 

In  the  b r i e f ,  counsel noted t h a t  s ince the f i l i n g  of defendant's b r i e f  

on May 20, 1957, the  Comnission had ieeued its opinion i n  M i a m i  Tribe, 

e t  al., v. United Sta tes ,  5 Ind. C1. Coxmu. 180, and had held 

there in  t h a t  the Treaty of Greenville recognized t r i b a l  ownership 

i n  the t r e a t y  Indians t o  ce r t a in  lands relinquished by the United S t a t e s  

in  the Northwest Terri tory.  On the matter of exclusive use and occupancy, 

couneel found much t o  support t h e i r  cause i n  the report  of D r .  Voegelin. 

On September 20, 1957, counsel f o r  p l a i n t i f f  in  Docket 29-K f i l e d  

a reply b r i e f  again asser t ing  recognized t i t l e  t o  the ceded area by 

virtue of the  Treaty of Greenville, and devoting most of the rert of the 

b r i e f  to  arguing the  r ing le  e n t i t y  theory of ownershtp of Potewatomi 

lands e a s t  of the Mioeisrippi River. The i r r u e  of aboriginal  ure and 



owupancy war v i r tua l ly  ignored. 

On June 2, 1957, the Comniarim ordered the diemireal of the 

pet i t ion in Docket 15-4 (Chippewa Indians). On January 28, 1958, the 

other f ive p la in t i f fa  f i l ed  a f o h t  statement asking tha t  t he i r  propored 

findings of fact  be considered amended to  reeolve the overlapping 

claims hetween them and auggerting a dividing line between Potawatani 

and Ottawa lands. Defendant objectedrtrenuaualy t o  th i s  proposal. 

On June 30, 1958, the Commission isrued i t r  t i t l e  decision. 6 Ind. 

C1. Coma. 414.. The Carmiraion atated that  it did not need t o  paas on 

the irsue of whether o r  not the Indiana had recognized t i t l e  t o  the 

area in  s u i t  since the record wae suff ic ient  t o  a h w  tha t  the Potmatomi 

Indiana and the Ottawa Indiana each had exclurrive use and occupancy 

t i t l e  t o  definable areas of land in  the ceded t rac t .  In reaching t h i s  

conclurion the Comniseion re l ied  dn the evidence of the expert witneraeo 

produced by counael for dockets 146, 15-M and 404, and also t o  a large 

extent on the teatimony and report of defendant's expert witness, D r .  

Voegelin. 'Lhe Cotmiasion also found that  the evidence aupported the 

dividing l ine  propoaed by the partier on January 28, 1958, i n  the i r  

joint  statement. The Comniarion rejected the single en t i t y  theory of 

Docket 29-K and 

five autonomous 

par t ier  t o  t h i r  

held that  a8 of 1821 the Potawatomia were divided in to  

band.; that  the ancestor. of the three group8 of ~ o t a r a t d  

l i t i ga t ion  exclurively used and occupied the aouthern 

two-third8 of the ceded area, while the Ottuwm had r b i l a r  aboriginal 

t i t l e  t o  the northern one-third. 'he Ca~mirrion concluded tha t  there 

wae no Chippwa exclusive rue and occupancy of any part of the ceded 

area i n  1821. 
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August 15, 1961, counsel for Docket 29-K f i l e d  a motion asking 

the  C m i s s i o n  to  amend c e r t a i n  of i ts  June 30, 1958 finding8 of f a c t  

on the e n t i t y  i s sue  and requested permission t o  submit i n  evidence i n  

the t i t l e  phase proceedings c e r t a i n  "newly discovered evidencet'.in 

support of the  requested amendments. On August 24, 1961, defendant 

objected t o  this  motion as  untimely. On Auguat 29, 1961, counrel for 

Docket 146 responded t o  the  motion by noting that  the e n t i t y  i ssue  had 

been decided adversely i n  another Potawatomi case, 4 Ind. C1. Conm. 473, 

affirmed, 143 C t .  C1. 131 (1958). c e r t .  denied. 359 U.S. 908 (1959). 

and a ~ k e d  that  the Comnission separate the "part ies issue" from the  

main issues i n  the  ins tan t  Potmatomi cases s o  t h a t  they could proceed 

t o  f i n a l  judgment more expeditiously. On September 5, 1961, counsel 

f o r  Docket 29-K f i l e d  documents explaining why he had not previaurly 

submitted the evidence he wished introduced i n  the  t i t l e  proceedings 

which had been completed severa l  years previously, and objected t o  the 

request of counsel i n  Docket 146 for  separate handling by the Comnie8ion 

of the  "parties iaauetl. He argued tha t  the adverre decirrion by the  

Conmission and the  Court of Clajms referred t o  by defendant, was a 

case involving Potmatomi lands weet of the Miseie8ippi whereas the 

ins tan t  case involved the cession of  lands located eas t  of the  Miesislrippi 

and ceded before the tribe was broken up and p a r t o f i t  forced t o  move 

weet. The Commtssion admitted the  proposed exhibi ts  i n  evidence but 

denied the  motion of 2 9 4  t o  amend the ~amnis8ian'e finding8 of fact 

on e n t i t y  entered i n  the t i t l e  phase of the care. 
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We have found (finding 24) that  the primary and most vigoroluly 

contested i rsue in the t i t l e  phase of the caee was the exclurive w e  and 

occupancy of the ceded are by the p la in t i f f  Indims. On tha t  i rsue 

nearly a l l  of the work which resulted in  the t i t l e  decision favorable 

t o  the Potmatomi Indiana war done by counrel for  dockets 146 and 15-M. 

The ef for t s  of counrel for  Docket 2 9 4  were almocrt exclusively devoted 

to  ertablishing the fac t  that  i n  1821 the Potawatomi Tndianr were a 

single land owning en t i t y  and that a11 Potawatomi Indiana were en t i t l ed  

t o  share in any ward rerul t ing from claims under the 1821 treaty.  

In advanchg or  eetablirhing the exclusive ure and occupancy of the 

Potawatomi Indians t o  the ceded area, counsel for Docket 29-K can 

be given no credi t .  

Insofar as  the re la t ive  contribution of counrel t o  the re ru l t s  

achieved, the value phase of these dockets followed much the same 

pattern as the t i t l e  phaae. The t r i a l  on value was held September 5 

through 8 ,  1961. Counsel for  p la in t i f f s  in  dockets 146, 15-M and 

40-K acted cooperatively and introduced many exhibits, detailed 

reports of two expert witnesses, and minutely cross examined the expert 

witness on value presented by defendant. (See findings 24, 25,  26 and 

27.) Counsel for Docket 29-K offered no evidence on value e i ther  

by way of documents o r  expert witness testimony, and he did not crorrs 

examine the expert witness for defendant. Counael'a only ac t iv i ty  a t  

the value t r i a l  waa t o  move for the introduction i n  evidence of a 

nrrmber of exhibits having t o  do with h i s  single en t i ty  theory, which 

exhibits were not received i n  evidence a t  that  time. Many of there 



exh ib i t s  were already i n  evidence i n  o ther  pending Potawatomi caaea. 

A t  the br ief ing a tage  of the  value phase, counsel f o r  docket8 

146 and 15-M proposed excellent primary and ult imate finding. of f a c t  

with the  necessary reference8 t o  the exhibi ts  o r  repor ts  on which they 

were based. In the  accampanyfng b r i e f ,  counsel argued t h a t  the  decision 

of the  Court of Claims i n  Miami Tribe, e t  &.v. United Sta ter .  146 C t .  C1. 

421 (195Y), was author i ty  for the Comnisafon t o  reach an "eattmeted" or 

"imputed" value f o r  the  land, under the c i r c ~ t a n c e a  which prevailed a t  

and f o r  severa l  years a f t e r  the  1821 t r e a t y  of cesaion. On April 13, 

1962, counsel f o r  Docket 2 9 4  f i l e d  a remarkable document which i a  

described i n  some d e t a i l  i n  our finding 31. It dealt mostly with 

the s ing le  e n t i t y  i ssue ,  When counsel reached the matter of value, h i e  

proposed findings were not primary findings baaed on record evidence 

of value, but were ra the r  i n  the nature of arguments d i rec ted  a t  

es tabl ishing the  unconscionability of the cars idera t ion received i n  the 

l i g h t  of defendant's admisaion tha t  the Government had paid 4 cents  an 

acre f o r  land which i n  1821 was worth, according t o  defendant's expert 

witneaa, 20 cents  an acre,  and t h a t  in  any event i n  valuing the land a s  

of 1821, the  Camniesion was required t o  consider the land worth no 

l e s s  than $1.25 per acre, the  prevail ing pr ice  for public land. in 1821, 

under the  circumstances of t h i s  case and applicable decieion law. 

In such value findings counsel made general ~ t a t s m e n t s  concerning the  

high quality of the  land with footnote reference t o  the  tart-y of 

Dr. Krmth, the  expert witnear f o r  Docketr 146 and 15-M. Although defendant 



had not yet f i l ed  i t 8  proporsd findingr of fac t  on value, cornuel for  

Docket 2 9 4  objected in advance t o  m y  finding. defendant might f i l e  

which would prove t o  be in confl ic t  with the Docket 2 9 4  propored 

f indbgs.  In connection with the issue of whether o r  not 84,480 acrer 

of h d  in  the ce.ricm area granted t o  individual8 under rection 3 of 

the 182' t rea ty  rhould be deducted from the uwunt of land t o  be valued, 

counrel argued that  no mch deduction rhould be made for  the rearm that  

the individuals i n  quertioa never received the land. 

Defendant f i l ed  extenrive propoaed findingr of fact  on value and 

objectionr t o  the propored findingr of a l l  p la in t i f f8  . -fendant 

objected-to the propored amendmento counret for  Docket 29-K wirhed t o  

make in  the t i t l e  phaae of the care on the ground tha t  ouch proporals 

were untimely m d t h a t  the evidence which p l a in t i f f  wirhed t o  re ly  on 

war not, 88 claimed, "newly dircweredtl but had already been offered 

by the asme counrel in  other Potawetomi docketa. Defendant nude no 

reaponre t o  the proposed findingr of Docket 29-K on the matter of value. 

(In August 31, 1962, counrel for  Docket 29-K f i l ed  o b j e c t i m  t o  

defendant% requerted findingr of fact  on value, a reply t o  defendutt'a 

objectionr t o  p l a in t i f f ' r  proposed amended findingr of fact  on t i t l e ,  

m d  a brief. On the value frrue, counrel pointed out tha t  defendant 

had interposed no objection t o  Docket 29-K'r finding of fac t  No. XXVI 

which related t o  the value of Area 117 and repeated the unconrcionable 

conridetation argument referred t o  abwe. Coun~el's objectionr were 

general i n  nature and hi8 rerponre to  defendant's arguuentr on the 
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e n t i t y  issue contained nothing new. 

On September 3, 1962, counael fo r  docketr 146, 15-M and 40-K f i l e d  

jo in t  object ions t o  defendant's requested findings of f ac t ,  a reply 

t o  defendant's object ions t o  p l a i n t i f f s '  requested findings of  f ac t  

and a reply  b r i e f  on the  value issue. The objections were rpec i f i c ,  

giving record references. The elements of value about which there wan 

the  gresteat controversy between defendant and counsel f o r  theae three  

dockets 146, 15-M and 40-K, were (1) how nuch was general ly known 

concerning possibilities of the  land as  an excellent  area f o r  farming 

and set t lement,  and (2) t o  what extent the value of the land waa 

enhanced by its timber resources. Counsel objected s p e c i f i c a l l y  t o  the  

re l ianceby defendant on land ra leo  by apeculators more than 30 yearr 

p r i o r  t o  the  1821 t rea ty ,  s t a t i n g  tha t  the record showed t h a t  ouch ee le r  

were in  no way comparable t o  the prospective ealee of the  land i n  

Area 117 where the  purchasers were largely individual  a e t t l e r e  who 

wanted t o  acquire land on which they intended t o  l i v e . ,  With respect  t o  

the deductabi l i ty  of the  84,480 acres of land granted t o  individuals  

by the  terms of the  1821 t rea ty ,  counsel objected t o  auch deduction on 

the  ground t h a t  the  grants  were made f o r  the benefi t  of defendant and 

not the  Indians, i.e., they were made t o  influence prominent members 

of the  Indian p a r t i e s  t o  the t r e a t y  t o  perusade the  o ther  Indiana t o  

execute the  t rea ty .  

A t  the  o r a l  argument on value held on October 11, 1962, counael for 

docketr 146, 15-M .nd 40-K argued from the  record and t h e i r  brief., 
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coateating with rpec i f ic i ty  the poritionr taken by defendant on value 

and on the deductability of the 84,480 acre8 of grant land. Cotmael 

for  Docket 2 9 4  participated in  the oral  argwmnt but did not a t  any 

time addrerr himuelf t o  the value irsue. Zirrrtead, counrel urged the 

Commirsion t o  take a frerh look a t  the arguments he had advanced on 

the s i r f l e  lard-aunlng en t i ty  theory which he claimed was applicable 

t o  a l l  Potawatomi land cerrionr from 1795 through 1833. He a100 argued 

( t ight ly ,  ar it l a t e r  developed) that the 1958 decirion of the Court 

of Claim in  the 80-called wertern landr care (143 C t .  C1. 131, cer t  

denied, 359 U.S. 905 (1959)), dealt  only with the right of the Potmatomi - 
Indiana remaining ear t of the' Mississippi t o  share ' in wards made by 

the Conmiraion for Potawatomi lands acquired weet of the Wirsirsippi, 

and that  the decision was not a bar t o  the further l i t i ga t ion  of the 

ringle w. multiple en t i ty  r t ructure  of the Potawatomi Indians between 

1795 and 1834 i n  connection with claims involving ceeeionr of eartern 

Potawatomi lands. 

On December 2, 1964, the Conmission dimieeed the pet i t ion in  

Docket 2 9 4  and amended i t 8  1958 t i t l e  findings by concluding that  

the Harnrahville Indian Ca~mnrnity and the Forest County Potawataad 

Camrmnity (Docket 2 9 4  pla in t i f fa )  did not have such a connection with 

the St. Joreph Band of Potawatanis as would e n t i t l e  them t o  maintain 

or par t ic ipate  in  c l a i m  brought on behalf of the St. Joreph Band. 

The Collmisaion 81.0 mended i t r  1958 t i t l e  opinion t o  hold that  p la in t i f fe  

i n  Docket 2 9 4  were dercendantr of WisconsLn Potawatamir who had 

remained in  the east  without Government permission when the r e r t  of the 
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Potaratomio moved west. In another order of t h a t  same date. the  

b m a i r r i o n  denied the motion of Docket 29-K t o  amend the June 30, 

1958, finding. of the  Colrmission. A per curiam opinion was issued 

with the  order, and Comnissioner Scott  dissented on the ground that 

the  p o l i t i c a l  s t r u c t u r e  of the Potawatomi Indiana ar  a land-owning 

e n t i t y  p r io r  t o  the  move west a f t e r  1833 had not been decided in  the 

1958 Court of Claims decision i n  the western lands case and was there- 

fo re  no bar t o  l i t i g a t i o n  of t h a t  question in  the ins tan t  dockets, 

On December 23, 1964, the Commission irraued its finding8 of f a c t  

and opinion on value i n  Dockets 146, 15-M and 40-K, the  pe t i t ion  i n  

Docket 2 9 4  having been dismissed. The details of t h i s  decialon are  

contained i n  our f inding 37. In sunmary, the Comniesion r e l i e d  to a 

great  extent  on the  evidence and arguments of counael in dockets 146, 

15-M and 40-K. In arriving at a value per acre of 85 cents ,  the  

Commiesion explained why it  was not persuaded t h a t  a prospective purchaser 

i n  1822 o r  for severa l  years thereafter would have been aa aware of the 

great desirability of the  area as carnae l  for plaintiffs believed the  

record showed. The Commiseion also concluded that the  lumber value t o  

which the expert witnear for dockets 146, 15-M and 40-K had testified 

(Hr. T r y g g ) ,  was too  speculat ive around the t ime of ceraion to appreciably 

enhance the  value of the  1ands.ceded. The Carmirrion expressly rejected 

the a r v n t  of c o w e e l  f o r  Docket 29-Kethat under the  c i r c w t a n c e r  of 

this case the  Camaission could not find a value of lee8 than $1.25 p e r  

acre,pointing out t h a t  the record i n  t h i e  c u e  contained abundant evidence 
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f r m v h i c h  an c a t h a t e d  o r  imputed value could be arrived a t .  In 

rejecting the argument of a11 plaint i f fa  that the 84.480 acre. of granted 

land rhauld be included i n  the acreage t o  be valued, the Collllirsiaa 

concluded tha t  in the abrence of any rhowing of wrongdoing by defendant 

in  making the grantr, the grant0 appeared t o  be part of the overall 

c e r r i o ~  agreement and there w a r  thus no rereon not t o  exclude thore 

lands in valuing the area in r u i t .  The CoQppirt~ion held that  the con- 

r iderr t ion paid for  the lrndr worth 85 cents pe r  acre in 1822 war 

c lear ly  unconrcionable and concluded that  p la in t i f f6  were mtftled t o  

.a uward computed on tha t  barie lees  allowable offsets.  

A r i n  the t i t l e  phase of thio case, counrel for  docketa 146 and 

1 5 4  did a l l  of the s ignif icant  work in  establishing the value of the 

Potmatomi ceded landr. k we stated in finding 38, counsel for  Docket 

29-K contributed nothing of help in  the matter of the value of the 

lands e i ther  a t  the t r i a l  o r  l a t e r  a t  the briefing stage. h a i n ,  cormrel'~ 

propored findings of fact  contained no primary findings but only ultimate 

oner. Mort of the work done by counsel for  29-K re la ted t o  mattera 

concerned with the po l i t i ca l  r t ructure  of the Potrwatani Xndgaar as a 

land-owning and land-ceding entity and war of no arr is tance t o  the 

Caamirrion i n  reaching i t 8  decision on the value of the ceded land& 

Even caunrel'r argument regarding the inclurion or wcluaion of the 

84,480 acres of granted land had l i t t l e  t o  recamwind it an the facts  or 

the law, the t rue i r rue  being whether or not the grant war a legitbut8 

part of the treaty-making procesr, or represented an exercire of undue 

influence on the part of defendant i n  procuring the execution by the 



Indians of the  t r e a t y  ceding tMr landa. In conc lu~ ion ,  we a r e  unable 

t o  a88iga any c r e d i t  t o  coun8el f o r  Docket 2 9 4  f o r  work contributing 

t o  the  f i n a l  r e s u l t  in the value proceedings. 

ENTITY PHASE 

Pr io r  t o  the  o f f s e t  phase of the  care, the e n t i t y  i s m e  began t o  

receive considerable ser ious  a t tent ion.  Mr. Robert Bell.  Jr., had 

become at torney of record i n  Docket 2 9 4  i n  l a t e  1964. He f i l e d  motions 

f o r  rehearing and reconeideration of the orders of the Comniseion wherein 

the  Comiclaion had denied motions of Docket 29-K pe t i t ioners  t o  admit 

addit ional  exhibi ts ,  and t o  amend the pe t i t ion  t o  epecify o ther  p a r t i e r  

p l a i n t i f f  i n  Docket 2 9 4 .  When the  motion was denied on December 1, 

1964, counsel, on March 1, 1965, f i l e d  a notice of appeal t o  the Court 

of Claims frcxn two orders of the  Cowniesion of December 2, 1964,which 

denied p l a i n t i f f ' s  motion t o  amend the 1958 t i t l e  findings of f a c t  with 

respect t o  the p o l i t i c a l  organizations of the Potawatami Indians, and 

the  order of the  same da te  dismissing the pe t i t ion  i n  Docket 2 9 4 .  On 

May 12, 1965, the  Commission by order s t a ted  tha t  defendant rhauld f i l e  

its amended answer on of f se t s  60 days a f t e r  the  Court of Claim decieion 

on the  appeal became f i n a l ,  s t a t t n g  t h a t  while the  appeal wa8 pending 

the  Cammiseion did not  have jur isdic t ion t o  proceed with the care,  The 

Citizen Band and the  P r a i r i e  Band of Potawatomf Indians, were made 

appellee6 i n  the appeal along with the United Sta tes .  The appellant. 

included p l a i n t i f f s  in t h i s  and a l l  other pending docket8 i n  *fch the  

eaatern Potawatorai Indiana were p la in t i f fa .  



On June 9, 1967, the Court of C l a w  rendered a deciaion (180 Ct. 

C1. 477) reverring the h a n i r r i o n ' r  holding that  the decision of the 

Conmirrioa in the wertezn lm& c u e ,  affirmed by the Court of Claims 

(143 C t .  C1. 131, 8upra)war a bar t o  the l i t i ga t ion  of the Potmatomi 

en t i t y  quertion in carer involving eaatern Potmatomi landr ceded 

between 1795 and 1834, and remanded the cases fo r  a new t r i a l  an the 

en t i t y  irrue.  

Hearings on the pol i t ica l  structure of the Potawatanir from 1795 

thmugh 1833, were held on Januury 18 and December 6, 1968, with counael 

for a l l  p l a in t i f f r  herein participating. On Mrch 28, 1972, 27 Ind. C l .  

Camn. 187, the Comnission iraued an opinion and order which, among other 

thingr, required that  p l a in t i f f s  in  Docket 2 9 4  be reinstated i n  there 

proceeding8 for the purpoae of rharing i n  the f ina l  award for  Royce Area 

117. The Coarmirrion =led that  from 1795 through 1833, P o t m a t h i  land 

war owned and ceded by a ringle land-owning ent i ty ,  i.e., the Potawatomi 

Tribe o r  Nation. The order re inr ta t ing Docket 29-K ar  a party i n  t h i r  

proceedingwar not appealed t o  the Court of Claims, but reveral other 

p la in t i f f8  in  the coxmolidated docketa affected by the 1972 decirion did 
- - 

appeal and the ruling. of the Comniasion on the en t i ty  question were affimed* 
. - 

205 Ct .Cl .  765 (1974) 507 F. 2d 852; Order of March 7, 1975, 206 C t . C l .  8670 

The record indicates that  counsel for Docket 2 9 4  spent f a r  more 

t h e  on the en t i ty  issue than did counsel for  the other docketr. 

However, i t  appear8 t o  us tha t  a great deal of the work done by coun8d 

on t h i r  i r rue  i n  Docket 2 9 4  war duplicative of the wrk done by the 



on largely a t  the expenre of doing any productive work on the v i t a l  

iasuer of t i t l e  and value in t h f r  consolidated proceeding which 

primarily involved a claim for  an award based on unconscionable con- 

sideration received for land ceded by the p la in t i f f s  t o  the Govement 

in  the treaty of 1821. After taking into consideration the amount and 

kind - €  work done which was actually necessary and helpful i n  assist ing 

the Conmission t o  resolve the conflictfng positions on the en t i ty  question, 

we conclude that  attorneys for  each of the three Potawatomi dockets con- 

tributed equally t o  t h i s  phase of the l i t igat ion.  

OFFSET PHASE 

On June 7, 1972, defendant f i led  an amended answer asserting a 

t o t a l  of $1,566,432.05 i n  alleged allowable offsets to  be deducted from 

the groee award for  the Potawatomi p la in t i f f s  in the amount of $2,320,370.70. 

Counsel for dockets 146 and 15-M joined in  f i l i ng  one s e t  of objections 

to  such alleged offsets ,  and counsel for Docket 2 9 4  f i led  separate 

objections. On March 1, 1973, counsel for Docket 29-K moved the 

Comnisaion t o  enter summary judgment disallowing a11 the claimed offset6 

on the ground that  the payments aererted by defendant were made gratuitously 

by the Government from public funds and were unrelated to  the Wvemmentfr 

l i a b i l i t y  t o  the p la in t i f fa  i n  the instant case. Noting that the 

abwe mentioned f ina l  award had been entered eight years previously, 

counsel argued that the ieeue of the allowability of these payments as 

of fse t s  should not be t r ied  by the Canmisaim because t o  do ro would 

further delay the payment of the award due plaintfffr .  Counsel did not 

make any specif ic  objections t o  any of the asserted offaetr .  



37 Id. C l .  Camr. 251 2 76 

In reaponre t o  the abwe motion of Docket 2 9 4 ,  defendant on Merch 

26, 1973, argued tha t  the ,  allowability of the o f f r e t r  did not depend 

upon there being a connection between the fact. rupporting the judgment 

for the p l a in t i f f s  and the nature of the alleged offaeta,  and tha t  the 

lack of ruch a connection could not deprive defendant t o  i t 8  r ight  t o  

t r i a l  on the matter of offsets.  Defendant araerted tha t  there existed 

material lasues of fact  t o  be t r ied i n  connection with the a l l w a b i l i t y  

of the alleged o f f r e t r ,  which precluded the granting of Docket 29-K'a 

motion for  runmary judgment. In a reply f i l ed  A p r i l  8, 1973, counrel 

for Docket 29-K again c i ted  the long delay r i m e  the f ina l  award a8 a 

ground for  denying defendant i t r  t r i a l  on offsets .  'Cln April 12, 1973, 

the Conmiraton issued an order denying the mtion of Docket 29-K for  

rmmary judgment. 

On May 29 ,  1973, cotinsel for  p l a in t i f f s  i n  dockets 1 5 4  and 146 

moved the Co~misrion for an order se t t ing  a p re t r i a l  conference on 

offaetr .  Counsel pointed out many of the of fse t s  asserted in the mended 

anawer had already been adjudicated in other Potmatomi dockete and 

rhould not have been aaserted in  the inetant dockets. On June 21, 1973, 

Counrrel for dockets 15-M and 146 f i led  a p re t r i a l  memorandum in 

accordance with the direction of the Canmission, pointing out tha t  althaugh 

the judgment in t h i s  ca8e war based upon a claim made under the Treaty 

of -a t  29, 1821, effect ive Match 25, 1822, the defendant had included 

in  it. amended anewer expenditures made prior t o  the effect ive date of 

the treaty. Counsel specified the expenditures claimed a8 allowable 

offaets which had already been aasertsd and l i t i ga t ed  kr other ~ o t m t d  



37 Ind. C1. C u m .  251 277 

dockets. Finally counsel f o r  dockets 15-M and 146 pointed out t h a t  

o f f s e t s  had been allowed and deducted from the  judgment fo r  the  

Cit izen and P r a i r i e  Potawatomi Indians i n  the  western lands case, but 

t h a t  i n  s p i t e  of t h i s  defendant had included i n  its amended answer o f f s e t s  

c l a w  based on expenditures made f o r  the  benef i t  of the Potawatomi 

Indians who had remained eas t  of the  Mississippi  a f t e r  the Cit izen and 

Prairie Bands had moved west. Counsel urged tha t  whether or not those 

claims were otherwise val id ,  they should not be o f fee t  against the 

amount of the award due the  Cit izen and P r a i r i e  Potmatomis who had 

already been charged f o r  the  expenditures made f o r  t h e i r  specia l  benefi t .  

On June 25, 1973, counsel f o r  Docket 2 9 4  f i l e d  a p r e t r i a l  memorandum 

r e l a t i v e  t o  defendant 's amended answer claiming o f f se t s .  Counsel 

questioned many of the  s p e c i f i c  expendituree claimed as allowable o f f s e t s ,  

contending t h a t  some were c l e a r l y  not allowable under the  terma of the 

Indian Claims Comnission Act, and t h a t  others were not allowable because 

unidentif ied portions of c e r t a i n  expenditures obviously went t o  Indiana 

who were not Potawatomie. 

On June 29, 1973, the  p r e t r i a l  conference was held with a repor ter  

present.  Counsel f o r  Docket 146 refer red  t o  defendant 's emended answer 

and supporting exh ib i t s  and pointed out a number of expendituree claimed 

a s  allowable o f f s e t s  which had been made p r io r  t o  the e f fec t ive  t r e a t y  

date. Ae the  conference progressed i t  became apparent t h a t  the  amended 

answer should have eliminated many of the  expenditure8 l i s t e d  i n  the  

GAO repor t  on which it was based, and t h a t  the p r e t r i a l  rrtatement of 

defendant should have eliminated those expenditure8 asserted i n  the 

mended answer but  c l e a r l y  not allowable a s  o f f ~ e t s -  Final ly  it wa8 
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agreed that t h e  trial on offactr  would take place on Wwember 15, 1973, 

with the Government r erving reprer entat ive voucherr with backup record. 

on the par t ier  by October 15, 1973. 

On November 15, 1973, the t r i a l  on offse t r  was held. The Governmentf r 

exhibit8 in  support of the claimed offeetr  ware introduced in evidence 

m d  the --countant who war reaponaible for preparing the e ~ c h i b i t ~  war 

crosr examined by counsel for  a l l  three docketr. By t h i s  tins defendat ' s  

claimed o f f r e t r  had been reduced from $1,566,432.05 t o  $26,484.42. On 

January 30, 1974, the briefing t i m e  of the par t ies  war s e t  by order of 

the COrnPisrion with defendant required to  f i l e  its requested finding8 of 

fact  and br ief  on o r  before March 14, 1974. On March 13, 1974, 

becaure a new attorney in  the Department of Just ice  had j u r t  been a r r i g ~ e d  

t o  there dockets, defendant requerted an extension of time for  the filing 

of the requested findings of fac t  and br ief  on offeetr .  Caunrel for  a l l  

three p l a in t i f f s  objected otrenwely t o  the granting of any much 

extension of t h e  pointing out that  the loss of in te res t  on the i r  judg- 

meat war f a r  in excess of the amount of off re t s  a t  rtake. On March 

29, 1974, couxmel for a l l  par t ier  appeared before the Comnirrioner t o  

whom the care war aaaigned, and with a reporter present dircumed the 

progrerr which had been made towarde se t t l i ng  the matter of the amount 

of allowable of f re t s .  As a resu l t  of that  conference, defendmt'r coun8d 

propored a finding of fact  utating that  defendant wae en t i t l ed  t o  

o f f r e t r  total ing $23,500.00 t o  which proposed find- counrel for the 

three p la in t i f f8  made no objection. On April 19, 1974, the Chmdraion 

entered a f ina l  award in which it found and concluded an a P u t t e r  of 1- 



tha t  $23,500.00 was properly allowable as an offaet  under Section 2 

of the Indian Claims Camnitmion Act and $2,296,870.70 was due p l a in t i f f s  

i n  the three dockets. 

Although counsel fo r  Docket 2 9 4  delayed the offset  proceedings 

by h i s  motion for  s ~ n m ~ r y  judgment on grounds which were legally untenable, 

he did par t ic ipate  effect ively  i n  the p re t r i a l  conference, the of f se t  

t r i a l  the post o f f se t  conference which resulted i n  reducing the 

amount of o f f se t s  t o  $23,500.00, and the entry of f i na l  judgment without 

awaiting firrther br ief ing by defendant o r  the part ies.  It appears f a i r  

t o  the  C k i s s i o n  t o  conclude tha t  a t  t h i s  phase of the case, counsel fo r  

a l l  three dockets contributed equally i n  reducing the claimed offaete from 

$1,566,432.05 t o  $23,500.00.. 

TIME EXPENDED 

Counsel fo r  Docket 29-K produced cer ta in  time records kept by M r .  

Maloney, Sr . ,  one of the or iginal  attorneys of record, now deceased. 

The de t a i l s  of those recorde a r e  s e t  forth in  Finding 50. Aa we s ta ted 

i n  our decision involving the fee apportionment between these erne 

attorneys i n  dockets 217, 15-K and 29-3 (36 Ind. C l .  Comm. 498 (1975)), 

i n  Indian claims l i t i ga t i on ,  such time recorde a re  not of great  assistance 

t o  the Commission i n  determining the value of an attorneyt# rervice for  

fee purposee, o r  the apportionment of such fee between part icipating 

attorneys i n  consolidated dockets where there is but one award made 

jo in t ly  t o  a l l  p la in t i f fa .  Zhia is part icularly t rue  i n  this, as i n  the 

other case just mentioned, where i t  is c lear  from the h o l e  record of 

proceedings t ha t  an enormous amount of time ha. been spent by counsel 
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for  a11 par t ier  i n  bringing the case t o  it. f ina l  conclueion. I f  a l l  

c-el had kept accurate records of the time actually rpent on these 

docket. from the f i l i n g  of -the petit ions t o  f inal  judgnent, it i a  quite 

l ikely that  the fee of 10% of the f ina l  sward would not begin t o  equal 

what those attorneys would have earned had they charged the hourly r a t e r  

for attorneys prevailing during the course of the l i t iga t ion .  

In aunmnry, our review of the records in theee docketr ar reflected 

in our finding8 of fac t  herein, rupport the follawing coaclurioar a8 t o  

the relat ive contributionr of the attorneys for the three coruolSdated 

docketr wigh rerpect t o  the amount of rignificant and helpful work 

performed a t  each phase of the l i t igat ion.  During the t i t l e  phare 

and the value phase, counrel for dockets 146 and 15-M contributed a l l  

of the rignificant work which rerulted in the f ina l  award for  the 

Potmuatmi land ceded i n  1821 a t  a consideration which the Commission 

found t o  be unconscionable. The effort8 of counsel for  Docket 29-K were 

devoted almost exclusively t o  establirhing hie  position re la t ive  t o  the 

Potmatomi en t i ty  question. h t h i s  particular care, comeel appeared 

t o  be obrermd with th i s  iuoue t o  the exclusion of a l l  other i r ruer  

prerent in the t i t l e  and value proceeding. The en t i ty  querticm war 

properly before the Comnieeion, but it was only one of several isrues. 

The primary irsues which, favorably resolved for  p la in t i f fa  would lead 

t o  a money judgment i n  t he i r  favor, were the eatablish&ent of aboriginal 

t i t l e  t o  a11 of the ceded land, and persuading the Conmfsaion tha t  the 

land had the highest value poaaible on the basia of a carefully prepared 

record. To these two v i t a l  ieouea colmrel for  Docket 29-K contributed 



nothing. The importance of a proper resolution of the en t i t y  issue was 

t o  insure tha t  the  award should go t o  those t r u ly  en t i t l ed  t o  it. This 

was not a simple issue and, as is apparent from the opinions of the  

divided Comnission, it was a close question. The sheer volume of work 

poured'into t h i s  i ssue by counsel f o r  Docket 2 9 4  was overwhelming, but 

viewed i n  the l i gh t  of how rmch of it was a help t o  the  h m i s s i o n  and 

the  court ,  w e  conclude tha t  a11 counsel contributed equally t o  t h i s  phase 

of the proceedings. 

In the  o f f s e t  phase, f o r  the  f i r s t  time, counsel f o r  Docket 29-K 

addressed himself exclusively t o  the issue before the  Cawniseion and 

h i s  contribution t o  reducing t he  tnaount of o f f se t s  claimed by defendant 

was equal t o  t ha t  of the other counsel f o r  dockets 146 and 1 5 4 .  

Having thus assessed the  contributions of each p l a i n t i f f ' s  counsel 

i n  each phase of the  case leading t o  the  f i n a l  resu l t ,  it is necessary 

t o  evaluate the  importance of the  work i n  each phase a8 it contributed 

t o  the  f i n a l  money judgment f o r  the p l a in t i f f s .  I n  weighing how much 

each phase of these consolidated dockets contributed t o  the  f i n a l  resu l t ,  

w e  a re  of the opinion t ha t  the en t i t y  phaee contributed approximately 259, 

t o  such resu l t ;  t ha t  the t i t l e  phase contributed approximately 25% t o  the  

r e su l t ;  t ha t  the  value phaee contributed approximately 30% t o  the  result, 

and the  o f f s e t  phase contributed about 20%. 

On the  basis  of the  record i n  these proceedings, our findiags of 

fac t ,  and fo r  the  reasons s ta ted  above, we  conclude tha t  the attorney8 

i n  each of the  dockets involved a re  en t i t l ed  t o  the following percentage 
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allocation of the fee fo r  the rervicea each huve rendered tn prosecutFng 

them claims: 

Docket 146 and 15-M 85% 

Docket 2 9 4  15% 

Coarnael i n  Docket 146 and 15-M have asked that the Coamiesion not 

make any 3pportioanent of the fees payable t o  them i n  those dockets. The 

record indicates tha t  cer ta in  agreements may exis t  between present counrel 

and the eetates of deceased counsel re la t ive  t o  the award of fees. The 

Camriseion, however, i r  not required t o  take into account such agreements 

i n  awarding the attorney fees t o  the present attorneys of record beyond 

s ta t ing  tha t  the awards are made t o  such attorneys fo r  dis t r ibut ion t o  

thore ent i t led t o  share i n  the fee award. 

Accordingly, we are  awarding a fee of $195,234.01 t o  counsel i n  

dockets 146 and 15-M, and a fee of $34,453.06 t o  counsel i n  Docket 2 9 4 .  

Theae sums are t o  be paid t o  the attorneys of record i n  the respective 

caaee on the i r  own behalf and on behalf of a l l  contract attorneys having 

an intereet  i n  the fees i n  these cases, The attorneys of record are t o  

make appropriate dis t r ibut ions of the fees t o  a l l  interested attorneys 

or t he i r  representatives, 

Concurriag: 


